
committee  
agenda  

1 

 
 
Extraordinary Meeting 
District Development Control Committee 
Thursday, 16th November, 2006 
 
Place: Council Chamber, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping 
  
Time: 7.30 pm  
  
Democratic Services 
Officer: 

Simon Hill, Research and Democratic Services 
Tel: 01992 564249 Email: shill@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 

 
Members: 
 
Councillors B Sandler (Chairman), Councillor Mrs D Borton, M Colling, Mrs R Gadsby, 
Mrs H Harding, J Hart, D Kelly, J Markham, P McMillan, Mrs P Richardson, Mrs P Smith, 
P Turpin, Mrs L Wagland and K Wright 
 
 
 
 

 
A BRIEFING WILL BE HELD FOR THE CHAIRMAN, VICE-CHAIRMAN AND GROUP 

SPOKESPERSONS OF THE-COMMITTEE, AT  6.30 P.M.  
IN COMMITTEE ROOM 2 PRIOR TO THE MEETING 

 
 

 1. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION   
 

  1. This meeting is to be webcast. Members are reminded to us the microphone 
system when speaking. 
 
2. The Chairman will read the following announcement: 
 
“I would like to remind everyone present that this meeting will be broadcast live to the 
Internet and will be capable of repeated viewing. 
 
If you are seated in the lower public seating area it is likely that the recording cameras 
will capture your image and this will result in the possibility that your image will 
become part of the broadcast. 
 
This may infringe your human and data protection rights and if you wish to avoid this 
you should move to the upper public gallery” 
 

 2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 

 



District Development Control Committee  Thursday, 16 November 2006 
 

2 

 3. SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (COUNCIL MINUTE 39 - 23.7.02)   
 

  (Head of Research and Democratic Services)  To report the appointment of any 
substitute members for the meeting. 
 

 4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 

  (Head of Research and Democratic Services) To declare interests in any item on this 
agenda. 
 
 

 5. ANY OTHER BUSINESS   
 

  Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, together with paragraphs 6 and 
25 of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution requires that the 
permission of the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the Chief Executive, 
before urgent business not specified in the agenda (including a supplementary agenda 
of which the statutory period of notice has been given) may be transacted. 
 
In accordance with Operational Standing Order 6 (non-executive bodies), any item 
raised by a non-member shall require the support of a member of the Committee 
concerned and the Chairman of that Committee.  Two weeks' notice of non-urgent 
items is required. 
 

 6. BLUNTS FARM, COOPERSALE LANE, THEYDON BOIS - ENFORCEMENT 
ACTION  (Pages 5 - 8) 

 
  (Head of Planning and Economic Development) To consider the attached report. 

 
 7. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS   

 
  Exclusion: To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government 

Act 1972, the public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of 
business set out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Act (as amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2): 
 

Agenda Item No Subject Exempt Information 
Paragraph Number 

Nil Nil Nil 
 
The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came 
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining the 
exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the 
information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any 
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least 24 
hours prior to the meeting. 
 
Confidential Items Commencement: Paragraph 9 of the Council Procedure Rules 
contained in the Constitution require: 
 
(1) All business of the Council requiring to be transacted in the presence of the 

press and public to be completed by 10.00 p.m. at the latest. 



District Development Control Committee  Thursday, 16 November 2006 
 

3 

 
(2) At the time appointed under (1) above, the Chairman shall permit the 

completion of debate on any item still under consideration, and at his or her 
discretion, any other remaining business whereupon the Council shall proceed 
to exclude the public and press. 

 
(3) Any public business remaining to be dealt with shall be deferred until after the 

completion of the private part of the meeting, including items submitted for 
report rather than decision. 

 
Background Papers:  Paragraph 8 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of 
the Constitution define background papers as being documents relating to the subject 
matter of the report which in the Proper Officer's opinion: 
 
(a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the 

report is based;  and 
 
(b) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not 

include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential 
information (as defined in Rule 10) and in respect of executive reports, the 
advice of any political advisor. 

 
Inspection of background papers may be arranged by contacting the officer 
responsible for the item. 
 

 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to District Development Control 
Committee 
 
Report reference: ENF/0195/2006 
Date of meeting: 16 November 2006 
 
Subject:  Blunts Farm/Parsonage Golf 
 
Officer contact for further information:  S. Solon 
 
Committee Secretary: Simon Hill Ext 4249 
 
 
Recommendations/Decisions Required: 
 
That authority be given to the Head of Planning Services, in consultation with the Head of 
Legal, Administration and Estates Services, to withdraw the enforcement notices issued on 
25 January 2006 and varied on 4th August 2006 in respect of Land at Blunts farm, 
Coopersale Lane, Theydon Bois, Essex. 
 
Background: 
 
On 17 January 2006 the Council resolved to issue enforcement notices and stop notices in 
respect of operational development and a breach of condition 12 of the planning permission 
for the golf course granted on 23 April 2002, Ref. EPF/765/99. 
 
On 25 January 2006 the Council issued two enforcement notices under s172 of the Town & 
Country Planning Act.  No stop notices were issued since the matters the Council wished to 
stop, i.e. the importation of fill material, had already ceased following the withdrawal of an 
Exemption Certificate to import waste to the land by the Environment Agency. 
 
By letter dated 31st May 2006 the Planning Inspectorate confirmed that appeals are 
proceeding against the Enforcement notices on the following Grounds: 
 
Ground (a) – That planning permission should be granted for what is alleged in the notice, 
Ground (b) – That the breach of control alleged in the enforcement notice has not occurred 

as a matter of fact, 
Ground (c) – That there has not been a breach of planning control, 
Ground (f) – That the steps required to comply with the requirements of the notice are 

excessive, and lesser steps would overcome the objections and 
Ground (g) – That the time given to comply with the notice is too short. 
 
On 13 June 2006 the Council resolved to give authority to the Head of Planning Services and 
the Head of Legal, Administration and Estates Services to vary the 2 enforcement notices 
issued 25 January 2006 so as to require the site to be remodelled and landscaped in 
accordance with a draft methodology agreed by the Council.  The methodology essentially 
seeks to achieve a “best fit” landscape solution based on infilling voids on the site using 
material sourced form the site in order to minimise HGV movements to and from it. 
 
The Council also resolved to authorise the issuing of two new enforcement notices as 
duplicates of the varied notices.  The purpose of issuing the duplicate notices was to deal 
with the possibility that the Secretary of State finds the variation to the original notices is too 
great to be treated as a variation and therefore quashes them on the basis that the variation 
causes injustice to the appellants. 
 
On 4th August 2006 the varied and duplicate enforcement notices were issued. 

Agenda Item 6

Page 5



 
By letter dated 2nd December 2006 the Planning Inspectorate confirmed they were aware of 
the duplicate notices because they had received appeals against them.  The inspectorate 
also confirmed the duplicate notices appear to cover the alleged breaches in the original 
notices or perhaps even more so and requested confirmation of whether the Council is 
considering withdrawing the varied original notices.  Prior to receipt of the letter telephone 
discussions with the case officer at the Planning Inspectorate revealed the Inspectorate takes 
the view that the issue of the duplicate notices is resulting in the appellant incurring 
unnecessary costs because the appeals against them are duplicates of the appeals against 
the original notices. 
 
On 30th October the Council received a planning application from the appellants proposing 
the completion of a golf course on the site with varied landscaping and contouring.  The detail 
of the proposal includes the filling of existing voids on the site primarily from material already 
on the land.  The proposed balance between on-site and off-site sourced material is 74% on-
site material to 26% off-site.  In addition it is proposed to import topsoil and other construction 
materials.  The proposals will be properly scrutinised by Officers and negotiations about the 
detail of the proposal will take place.  The submission of the application is reported only as 
background to this report and no views on it are sought at this time.  A report on the final form 
of the proposal will be presented to this Committee for a decision on the application.  In any 
event, the planning application is not valid at the time of writing this report although that is 
expected to be rectified shortly and an update will be given verbally at the meeting of this 
Committee.  In addition, Members are advised the applicant has been requested to submit an 
Environmental Impact Assessment and Environmental Statement for consideration as part of 
the application.  The applicants have previously said they will do this therefore no 
consultation exercise on the application will be carried out until this is received regardless of 
its validity. 
 
 
Report: 
 
The issues raised by the circumstances leading up to this report are as follows: 
 
Issue1: 
 
The need to protect the Council’s position against the possibility that the Secretary of State 
finds the variation to the original notices is too great to be treated as a variation and therefore 
quashes them on the basis that the variation causes injustice to the appellants. 
 
Issue 2: 
 
The potential for the Council to incur the appellant’s additional costs in pursuing the appeals 
against the duplicate enforcement notices. 
 
Issue 3: 
 
The potential for the Council to incur the appellant’s additional costs in pursuing the appeals 
against the original enforcement notices as a consequence of withdrawing them. 
 
Issue 4: 
 
The potential for a resolution of the harm caused by the site in it’s existing condition to be 
excessively delayed by changes to the appeal timetable as a consequence of withdrawing 
any of the enforcement notices. 
 
 
 
Issue 1: 
 

Page 6



This can only be completely secured through the duplicate enforcement notices issued on 4th 
August 2006. 
 
Issue 2: 
 
This is no more than a possibility although in the circumstances officers consider an award of 
costs is probable.  This could be dealt with through the withdrawal of the duplicate 
enforcement notices but Officers strongly advise against that in view of the need to deal with 
Issue 1.  It is however likely that this could be dealt with by withdrawing the original 
enforcement notices and this is discussed under Issue 3. 
 
Issue 3: 
 
The withdrawal of the original enforcement notices at this stage in the appeal process would 
normally result in an award of costs against the Council.  However, the appellant’s solicitor 
has advised the Council in writing “that they would not make any application for costs purely 
on the grounds of such withdrawal, because in fact the appeals which have been lodged in 
respect of all four Notices are virtually identical”.  Nevertheless, they go on to say “This 
confirmation is however based on the understanding that, in the event of such withdrawal, my 
clients will automatically and without having to make a claim for costs obtain a refund of the 
fees which they have paid to PINS (the Planning Inspectorate) in respect of the appeals 
against the first two Notices and is also without prejudice to my clients right to make an 
application for costs in relation to any of the Notices or appeals in respect of any other 
matters which may arise, other than the fact of the withdrawal itself.” 
 
At the time of writing this report the Planning Inspectorate have not given any undertaking in 
writing that fees for the first appeals would be transferred from them to the appeals against 
the duplicate enforcement notices.  Verbal advice from the Inspectorate is that if an appeal is 
withdrawn 22 days before an inquiry a refund of the appeal fee is normally given.  
Confirmation is being sought and will be reported verbally at the meeting but it is understood 
that the appeals fees would be transferred. 
 
Issue 4: 
 
It is not considered that the withdrawal of the original enforcement notices would result in any 
excessive delay.  It is most likely that the appeals against the duplicate enforcement notices 
would continue in accordance the timetable of the original appeals.  The worst-case scenario 
for the appeal timetable is a delay in the inquiry date of some months.  However, changes to 
the appeal timetable may be academic in view of the recently received planning application.  
That is because it represents a serious attempt by the owners of the land to seek a 
compromise solution with the Council.  Clearly, the Council might not give planning 
permission for any solution negotiated but Officer’s views are that if a planning permission for 
a solution acceptable to the Council is given, that is likely to result in the fastest possible 
resolution of the harm caused.  In the circumstances, once the application is valid, Officers 
will, together with the appellants, request the Planning Inspectorate hold the appeal in 
abeyance to allow for the Council to give consideration to the planning application.  Should 
planning permission be refused, it would allow the Council to demonstrate at appeal that it 
has done everything it can to seek an agreed solution. 
 
 
Conclusion: 
 
The balance of the issues raised is such that it would be in the Councils interest to withdraw 
the original enforcement notices issued on 25 January and varied on 4 August 2006.  The 
risk of costs being awarded against the Council exists but it is small given the views of the 
appellant and having regard to discussions with the appeals case officer at the Planning 
Inspectorate. 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Blunts Farm, Coopersale Lane, Theydon Bois - Enforcement Action

